
1 
 

Howard Community College  
RFP: Construction Management at Risk Services for MAC 
Solicitation Number: 20P-002 
RFP Opening Date: November 5, 2019 

 
ADDENDUM No. 3 

 
This addendum incorporates the minutes from the pre-proposal conference held on October 21, 2019 at 9:30 a.m. 
 
In attendance for the college: Domonic Cusimano, Director of Procurement; Chuck Nightingale, Executive 
Director of Facilities; Travis Hopkins, Facilities Planner; Erin Foley, Director of Athletics; Mike Long, Dean of 
Mathematics, John Garnsey, Executive Director of IT Services, and Mike Popp, Facilities Operations Manager. 
 
The College is inviting proposals from qualified construction firms to provide Construction Management at Risk 
services with a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) for the new Math and Athletics Complex.   
 
A few key dates and points that were emphasized: 
The RFP document and Part I/Part II Facility Program are located on the procurement page of the college’s 
website. The documents are packaged separately, so be sure to open each link. 
 
Signed and Sealed proposals must be received in the Finance office by 11:00 am on November 5, 2019.  Late 
proposals will not be accepted.  Proposers must use the label included in the RFP documents on the outside of the 
package.  Parking is quite limited on campus.  Each proposer needs to plan for adequate time for delivery. 
 
All questions are to be submitted to the Director of Procurement in writing by no later than 9:00 a.m. on October 
5, 2019.  Answers will be issued as addenda through the College’s solicitation page, not on eMMA. It is the 
responsibility of each proposer to ensure that they have received all addenda. Receipt of each addendum must be 
indicated on the appropriate form.   
 
The selection process is a multi-step process.  After the technical proposals have been evaluated it is expected that 
a short list of firms will be required to provide an oral presentation to the evaluation team. The presentations are 
anticipated to be scheduled on December 12th and 13th, 2019. All key personnel on the Proposer’s team, as noted 
in the RFP documents, are required to attend. The Director of Procurement will contact the selected firms to 
provide more detail about the presentations, as well as schedule the time for the presentation. 
 
The Director of Procurement is the sole point of contact on this solicitation. No one else at the College may be 
contacted about this solicitation until after award has been made by the proper authority. Failure to comply with 
this requirement could result in disqualification. It is the intention of the College that a recommendation for award 
will be presented to the Board of Trustees in January. A Notice to Proceed will be issued after award.  Firms 
should note that the solicitation is still considered in process until this time, even if their firm has not proceeded to 
a particular phase. 
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Discussion of the scope of work 
The selected firm shall construct a new Mathematics and Athletics Complex of 122,104 net assignable square feet 
and 193,075 gross square feet with a construction budget of approximately $83 million. The new facility will 
house and support academic programs for Mathematics (A.A degree), Actuarial Science (A.A. degree), Exercise 
Science (A.A. degree), and Physical Therapy (A.A.S. degree), along with program and activity needs of athletics, 
recreation, intramural sports and clubs. 
 
The project will provide critical instructional areas and support spaces, unite student and faculty learning resource 
functions, and establish athletic and recreational spaces necessary to serve the campus community. This project 
supports current enrollment and growth for the Mathematics Department and Athletics programs, while 
addressing existing inadequacies and space deficits. The project is required to be at least a LEED silver project. 
 
It should be noted that some of the program requirements and specifications included in the Part I and Part II facility 
program document will be modified from the original program. The selected A/E firm will be performing program 
verification during the time period of this RFP process in preparation for the schematic design phase. The College 
and A/E firm will update the selected CM firm on the finalized programmatic components and the updated project 
schedule after the award of this RFP has been completed. 
 
The College is in the process of retaining an A/E firm for design and development services, and anticipates that 
design will commence in November. In preparing the proposal, the firm is expected to review the new 
Mathematics and Athletics Complex Part I and Part II Facility Program and Educational Specifications dated 
April 30, 2018. The design phase of this project is expected to take eighteen (18) months followed by a phased 
thirty-eight (38) month construction schedule. The project shall be completed in a timely fashion to ensure that it 
is open for fall semester, beginning in August 2024. 
 
Questions: 
Q1. What are the phasing plans and is there a project schedule, i.e. North to South, South to North, etc.? 
The College expects that the CM will assist the A/E firm and owner during the preconstruction phase to develop 
the phasing schedule. The original phasing that was proposed to the State for program approval recommended the 
following: 

a. Phase 1 – construct new athletics offices and essential areas; move athletics staff and operations as 
swing space and keep the current building operational; 

b. Phase 2 – construct math building, complete bridge connector, and demolish the old athletics 
building; move math into the new math building; and 

c. Phase 3 – complete the remaining athletics spaces following demolition of the current athletics 
building; expand into the new athletics spaces. 

 
Q2. What type of scheduling software will be used for this project? Does the college have a preference? 
The college does not have a standard scheduling software that it uses. The College is flexible and will rely on the 
awarded CM to provide the scheduling software based on what the firm is comfortable using. 
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Q3. What type of document management software will be used for this project? Does the college have a 
preference? 
The college does not have a standard document management software that it uses. The College is flexible and will 
rely on the awarded CM to provide the document management software based on what the firm is comfortable 
using. 
 
 
A site visit immediately followed. 
 
Additional Questions Received 
 
Q4. RFP section 2.7 notes that “For each project, the Proposer is to complete the CM at Risk Experience form 
provided in this RFP document.” While this document has been provided as a PDF form, please confirm it would 
be acceptable to recreate a native version of this form that captures all information requested in the version 
provided. 
The College is amenable to this so long as the same requested information is captured. 
 
Q5. At the A/E pre-proposal meeting, it was mentioned that State funding for this project has been reduced from 
$97 million to $83 million due to the elimination of the bridge connector between the buildings. At the CMAR pre-
proposal meeting, a bridge continued to be mentioned. Is the bridge connection back in the project, or was the 
reference at the CMAR pre-proposal meeting meant to imply a pedestrian bridge between the two buildings? 
The State funding for the entire project was reduced from $99 million to $97 million (total project costs including 
design, construction, and equipment), resulting in the construction budget being reduced from $85 million to $83 
million. The reduction was a result of the state choosing to NOT fund the bridge connector, but the approved 
program includes a bridge if the college elects to fund it with local funds.  The College expects that the project 
team will investigate alternatives for a creative and cost-effective way to connect the math and athletics portions 
of the complex despite the reduction in funding. 
 
 
Issued on October 23, 2019. 
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